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County of Pender

Board of Commissioners

James David Williams, Jr. Chairman
Jimmy T. Tate, Vice-Chairman
Norwood Blanchard

George Brown

F.D. Rivenbark

County Manager's Office
Post Office Box 5

805 South Walker Street
Burgaw, NC 28425

~ Telephone: (910) 259-1200
Facsimile: (910) 259-1402

Rick Benton, County Manager

Paul Parker, Assistant County Manager

Agenda ltem Memorandum

To: Board of County Commissioners

From: | Rick Benton, County Manager

Date: August 13, 2008

Subject: Town of Burgaw Funding Request for Historic Depot

A request to the Board of County Commissioners has been received from Mayor Cowan, Town
of Burgaw for funding in the amount of $50,000 for preserving the hlstonc depot. A copy of the
letter and associated material is attached for your convenience.

Thank you.

cc: Glenda Pridgen, Deputy County Clerk
Trey Thurman, County Attorney



Kenneth Cowan
Mayor

Howard Walker
Mayor Pro Tem

Commissioners: -

Louis Davis
* Jan Dawson
Wilfred Robbins
John Wharton

Martin Beach
Interim Town
Manager

Sylvia Raynor
Town Clerk

Robert-Kenan
Town Attorney

Town of Burgaw

109 N. Walker Street, Burgaw, NC 28425

Phone: (910) 259-2151, Fax (910) 259-6644, email: townofburgaw@townofburgaw.com

August 4, 2008

Commissioner F. D. Rivenbark — District 5
P O Box 151
Burgaw, NC 28425

Dear Commissioner Rivenbark:

We were pleased to note that the Board of County Commissioners had recently
allocated $20,000.00 to the Penderlea Homestead Museum. We believe it is important to -
maintain and preserve our history. Tourism is big business in Pender County. Tourism in
Pender County has grown into a $66.88 million (2006) annual business. It employees 730
people and generates $4.79 million in local tax receipts.*

Tourists are motivated by a desire to experience the authentic natural, historic and
cultural resources of a community or region. Heritage tourism has evolved into one of the
fastest growing segments of the fravel market and has become the impetus behind economic
development efforts for rural areas statewide.

Mike Taylor has recently conducted research into the Burgaw Historic Depot (see
attached history). Not only is the depot the oldest in North Carolina but it may also be one of
the oldest (if not the oldest) in the United States. The town has already expended $204,000.00
to stabilize the building. We estimated that it will take $350,000.00 to finish the project. The
Depot will be used as a transportation museum/meeting room and a home for the Pender
County Arts Council.

The Town is requesting that the Board of Commissioners allocate $50,000.00 to
assist the town in preserving such an important structure. :

Singkrely,

Kenneth T. Cowan

CC: Board of County Commissioners
Pender County Manager

*“The Economic Impact of Travel on North Carolina Counties.” This study was prepared for
the North Carolina Division of Tourism, Film and Sports Development by the Travel Industry
Association of America.”



A History of the Historic Burgaw Rail Depot:
Oldest Train Station in North Carolina

By Michael Y. Taylor

In the 19" through the mid-20" century, train depots were the hubs of modern transportation and
communication in America. Burgaw was typical in that people, mail, and goods arriving and
departing daily put the depot in the heart of the community. For many decades, not only was the
mail delivered by train to Burgaw but, beginning in 1854, the depot served as post office as well
(Stroupe, p.380). Here was also found the world’s first form of email, the telegraph, before
telephones were invented. Local families still preserve important telegrams announcing births,
deaths, and other momentous occasions important to them. The depot was a place where so many
families said farewell to generations of sons going off to war. It also became a place of
celebration upon their return, should they live to be so fortunate. For towns and cities across the
county, the railroad depot was a reflection of local prosperity and civic pride.

When the Burgaw Jaycees, a civic group, nominated the Burgaw Depot to the National Register
of Historic Places in 1986, they knew the building was quite old. But when the NC Division of
Archives & History conducted their investigation, the citizens learned that the depot held “state-
wide significance based on its age and its importance to the development of the rail industry in
the state” (Oswald 21 Nov. 1985). In conclusion, the State not only endorsed the application to
the US Department of the Interior, but responded that indeed “it is the oldest depot” known in the
state (Oswald 6 March 1986). Indeed it is likely one of the oldest in the nation!

The original 1850 structure today is a three bay door warehouse, 90 ft. by 21 ft., expanded in 1916/17 to the
south by a passenger and station master’s annex (71 ft by 33 ft.), and to the north (below) by a loading dock
128 ft. by 37 ft. In all, the depot stretches nearly 100 yards, the length of a football field.




The depot bears witness to nearly 160 years of history. As one of only two pre-Civil War depots
in the state, the building is a rare antebellum railroad structure expanded by later additions. State
historians have identified the warehouse section of the depot as the original building dating to
1850. Considered in whole, the depot reflects the historical development of the railroad in NC in
the 19™ and 20" centuries. In 1898, passenger waiting rooms and rail offices were added to the
south end in the era when travel by passenger train became more refined. This was followed by
expansion of the freight platform to the north in 1916/17 as rapid rail transportation created
distant markets for locally grown fresh fruits and vegetables (US Dept. of the Interior).

The depot was built as a station on the storied Wilmington & Weldon Railroad completed in
1840. The rail line was named after the terminal locations, and it stretched across the broad
coastal plain from southern North Carolina to the Virginia border. When the rail line was
completed at 161.5 miles in length, it was hailed as the longest railroad in the world, a popular
though short lived claim to fame (US Dept. of Interior). The Burgaw Depot served as a water
and wood loading stop requiring the steam powered trains to linger longer than at most stations
on the line (Wilmington & Weldon Railroad Company).

The interior of the warehouse still bears the charred scars of a Union cavalry attack in 1863. In
1865, the depot was a headquarters for retreating Confederate generals and their troops for some
time after the fall of Fort Fisher and Wilmington. It also became the last place of captivity for
thousands of prisoners of war for a week in late February 1865 while a massive prisoner
exchange was arranged by leaders in Richmond and Washington, D.C. As a Confederate
communications center after the fall of Fort Fisher, the depot telegraph operator received and
sent communications to such major figures such as Commanding General Robert E. Lee,
Secretary of War John Breckinridge, and other leading government and military officials.

During the Civil War, the Wilmington & Weldon Railroad, along with the Wilmington port,
truly earned a more significant reputation as “The Lifeline of the Confederacy.” Wilmington was
long the last Confederate seaport receiving much needed foreign supplies despite the attempt by
the Union navy to blockade it. Sleek and fast “blockade runner” ships slipped past the Union
navy at night with valuable commodities. Supplies were then quickly shipped by rail, passing
through Burgaw, directly to the warfront in Virginia to sustain the southern armies defending the
Confederate capital of Richmond. As a result, the Wilmington & Weldon railroad became a

-strategic Union military objective. If the critical supplies could be cut off, the'logic followed, the
Confederate forces would be forced to surrender.

From New Bern, captured early in the war, the Union had a toehold in eastern NC from which
they launched attacks against the railroad. In 1862, Union cavalry under the command of General
Edward E. Potter in New Bern attacked the Burgaw Depot setting it on fire. They were repulsed
and pursued by Company A, NC Tenth Battalion (2™ Heavy Artillery) as their historian recorded
after the war:

“When a cavalry regiment of Federals from New Bern made a raid on the Wilmington & Weldon
Railroad, burning the depot at Burgaw, the Tenth Battalion pursued down below Richlands —
heavy artillery pursing cavalry -- the cavalry came in on the ‘home stretch’ by all odds ahead”
(Frazier).




The battalion history confirms local oral history of the attack and fire passed down through the
old families of the area. Fortunately, the attack was repulsed, and the fire put out before major
structural damage could occur. The Burgaw depot was likely saved due to the close proximity of
Confederate troops stationed nearby and the action of local citizens. Charring of the wall and
ceiling surfaces may be observed to this day in a section of the original depot warehouse.

Atfter the Fall of Fort Fisher at the mouth of the Cape Fear River on January 15, 1865, Union
troops naturally began advancing towards Wilmington. They were slowed by the defense
mounted by Confederate Army Major General Robert F. Hoke. In fact, it was another month
before the city of Wilmington would be captured. Residents around the Burgaw Station
community, just 22 miles north of Wilmington, had no idea that soon their small quiet
community would soon be hosting such a large number of visitors.

As the Union army slowly moved toward Wilmington, negotiations in the Confederate and
Federal government capitals were concluding to lift the moratorium on prisoner of war
exchanges. This ban on prisoner exchanges, instituted by Union Commanding General Ulysses
S. Grant to deprive the south of soldiers returning to the front, had been in effect for about ten
months ( Holland 4-5).

Meanwhile in Florence, SC, the Confederacy was pondering what to do with 6,000 prisoners of
war locked in the stockade as Major General William T. Sherman moved into the area. The
stockade was guarded by the 3rd (Gill's) Battalion SC Reserve Infantry composed of males ages
17-18 and 45 to 50 who had been called to duty only a year earlier. Lewis Knudsen’s history of
the battalion records that,

it was decided to move the able-bodied prisoners.to the prison at Salisbury, North Carolina, and
accordingly on 15 February 1864, Colonel Henry Forno, acting Commissary General of
Prisoners, issued orders to begin evacuating the approximately 6,000 prisoners who were able to
travel. The first group of prisoners was sent out almost immediately, and by 17 February, only the
sickest and most disabled were left in the Stockade. The prisoners were sent to Wilmington,
North Carolina, in boxcars with the guards riding on top, via the Wilmington & Manchester
Railroad, a trip lasting nearly two days. Under the original plan, they were to be transferred to the
Wilmington & Weldon Railroad for shipment to Goldsboro, and then transferred again to the
North Carolina Railroad for the final leg of their journey to Salisbury.

The first groups had already reached Goldsboro, when on 18 February the Confederate Secretary
of War directed that all further prisoners were to be held at Wilmington for exchange in
accordance with an agreement just reached with Federal authorities. Orders were also issued that
those prisoners already sent forward to Goldsboro were to be returned to Wilmington. However,
news of the agreement was slow in reaching the commander of the Federal forces at Wilmington,
Major General John M. Schofield, and on 20 February, Confederate Major General Robert F.
Hoke reported that the Union commander was refusing to accept prisoners.

Lapses in communication between occupied Fort Fisher and Union commanders in Virginia and
Washington, D.C. contributed to a delay of prisoner exchange order to be received by the Union
commanders occupied with waging assault on Wilmington. Likewise with the Confederate
evacuation of Wilmington, confusion reigned in the southern camp as various officers sent
conflicting orders regarding the disposition of prisoners. Because the trains were needed in the
evacuation of soldiers and civilians, Wilmington railroad official S.L. Fremont telegraphed
Confederate General Braxton Bragg in Magnolia on February 20 urging him to intercede:




I hear they refuse to receive the prisoners now, and Hoke orders them to Goldsborough. They
cannot all be removed there before the city falls. Please direct them to be unloaded at Burgaw
and return for more. The Yankees are in three miles of the town and shelling furiously (U.S. War
Dept. ser. I, vol. 47, pt I. 1233. Bragg to Fremont, 20 Feb. 1865).

Several days later, General Robert E. Lee from Confederate Army Headquarters telegraphed
Confederate Secretary of War Breckinridge clarifying that he ordered Braxton Bragg that the

- prisoners should remain in the Wilmington vicinity. Lee said Union commanding General Grant
was also having to reiterate orders that a prisoner exchange now be conducted. (U.S. War Dept.
ser. II. vol. 8. 298. 23 Feb. 1865). Knudsen’s history of Gill’s Battalion, guarding the 6,000
Florence prisoners, states that “consequently, by 22 February when Confederate forces
evacuated Wilmington, a large number of Federal prisoners had accumulated there, and were
taken by rail to Burgaw, about 15 miles north of the city on the line of the Wilmington & Weldon
Railroad.”

The retreating Confederates were evacuating northward across the Northeast Cape Fear River
into present day Pender County. Here the Federal advance paused, as did complete Confederate
retreat, and the river provided a boundary between them. On February 23, Confederate Army
officer Archer Anderson telegraphed Governor Vance’s office in Raleigh that, “We evacuated
Wilmington yesterday morning, bringing off everything of value. Enemy made but feeble pursuit.
Both armies now stationary. Our headquarters near Burgaw Station” (U.S. War Dept. ser. I,
vol. 47, pt. II. 1263.)

During the next few weeks, the Burgaw Depot became a base of Confederate telegraph
communications for the region ! and a staging area for a major prisoner of war exchange. For a
time, Burgaw Depot offered a logical operational hub for Confederate Major General Hoke, in
command of the eastern NC forces. One Confederate camp was apparently well established
north of the depot with a rail spur to it from the main tracks (Pender County Planning Dept.). At
this time, the depot, which was 15 miles from Northeast Ferry, offered proximity to this
proposed exchange point, as well as telegraph service and rail transportation north for as long as
the route remained in Confederate hands.

After the fall of Wilmington, Confederate-troops formerly positioned for the city’s defense were
on the move towards the interior of the state. Communications suggest Burgaw Depot became a
departure point by train for units of the retreating Confederate Army as well as an initial refuge
for fleeing Wilmingtonians. Before the W&W Railroad was cut off by the expanding Federal
presence in eastern NC, R.T. Guion telegraphed General Braxton Bragg in Burgaw on February
22, 1865 suggesting he should “use the rolling stock to advantage in removing our troops to
head of North Carolina Railroad toward Salisbury or Charlotte” (U.S. War Dept. ser. L, vol. 47
pt. I 1249). Bragg received this word at “‘headquarters, a camp near Burgaw Station” (U.S.
War Dept. ser. [ vol. 47 pt. IL. 1263).

Meanwhile, thousands of prisoners from Florence, SC, in a weakened state from days of very
close confinement crammed in rail box cars, were transported to Burgaw Station for holding.
With their Salisbury destination cancelled, they were likely without provisions. Likely confined
on the grounds around the depot, with perhaps some inside, their suffering could only be
somewhat alleviated by the hope that freedom was near. Another group of 2,275 prisoners of
war were transported by train from Salisbury to Goldsboro. Once in Goldsboro, they walked in a
two mile column (NC Dept. Cultural Resources) south to be exchanged.




The North Carolina Civil War diarist Catherine Ann Deveruex Edmonston of Halifax County
was a well connected aristocratic lady with biases and prejudices common to her position and
time, but with a keen interest in the war. By the time news of these events in southeastern North
Carolina reached her ears the prisoner exchange was nearly complete, and she recorded her
reaction on March 3, 1865 about the prisoner of war situation at Burgaw Depot:

The Yankees [prisoners] are now at Burgaw Station & Hoke about seven miles in advance of
them. A truce for seven days for the exchange of prisoners has been agreed on between the two
forces & our Agent for exchange, Col. Hatch, is there conducting it as rapidly as possible. The
sufferings of the Yankee prisoners on the backward route are represented as very great, but we
were not to blame for it & it was not in our power to alleviate it. They had been collected to the
number of several thousand there for Exchange when Terry refused to receive them & it became
necessary to remove them [from Wilmington] rapidly to prevent their falling into his hands. Such -
a step had not been contemplated & consequently no provision had been made for them; hence
their suffering. On the heads of their own Government & countrymen be it! Our hands are clean!
(Crabtree, 675)

On a rainy daybreak on Sunday, February 26, the first group of prisoners was shipped south by
box car from Burgaw Station. The point of exchange occurred north of the river at the
intersection of the Duplin Rd. and the Wilmington & Weldon Railroad. There Confederate and
Union commissioners of exchange counted the men as they disembarked. Approximately 1,400
prisoners of war were released daily for seven days in this fashion (Fonvielle, 447, 449). By
March 4, a total of 8,862 Union prisoners, including 992 commissioned officers and 120 African
American troops, were traded across the Northeast Cape Fear River for an unknown number of
Confederate prisoners of war (NC Dept. Cultural Resources).

Burgaw Station apparently remained a local Confederate hub well into the month of March and
seemingly even into April while other stations above Burgaw fell into Union hands earlier. On
March 16, 1865, C.S.A. Assistant Adjutant-General John B. Sale referred to the Confederate
troops stationed there in a telegram to Major General Hoke stating, “From near Burgaw Station
you detached from your command and ordered to a position up the Cape Fear River toward
Fayetteville, two companies of infantry, one of flight artillery, and a detachment of engineer
troops...” (U.S. War Dept. ser. L. vol. 47 pt. II. 1404). Since late February, the Union had been

on the move east of the depot on the Duplin Road and the river. Troops moved northward by foot

and steamer up the Northeast Cape Fear River, securing the W&W Railroad, and roving across
the land occupying a number of communities on the rail line including South Washington
(Watha), Rockfish, Faison Station, and Magnolia (U.S. War Dept. ser. L. vol. 47 pt. 1. 924-26).

Confederate troops throughout the area were also being directed to Fayetteville to eventually join
up with General Joe Johnston who had just been summoned from retirement by General Robert
E. Lee (U.S. War Dept. ser. L. vol. 47 pt. II. 1404-5). Johnston would collect a force of all
available troops that would eventually collide with US General Sherman’s forces at the Battle of
Bentonville on March 19-21. This would be the largest Civil War battle fought in North
Carolina, and would result in the largest troop surrender of the war on April 26 at Bennett Place
near Durham, seventeen days after Lee’s surrender to Grant at Appomattox (Bennett Place).




As late as the second week of April, there seemed to be some resistance remaining to the
growing Union presence near Burgaw Depot. On April 9, 1865, a message from a Federal
soldier John E. O’Brien to Major William M. Terry, Chief of Staff, reported, “I have the honor
to report that the telegraph operator at Burgaw Station was captured last evening and the wire
cut by the rebels” (U.S. War Dept. ser. I. vol. 47 pt. III. 146). Either departing Confederate
troops or local citizenry used their previously unfettered position at the depot to interrupt Federal
communications.

With the close of the war, the south entered the Reconstruction era with tremendous economic,
social and political upheaval and change. During this period, the region was still a part of New
Hanover County, and the depot served as a voting place for Holden Township (Reaves, p. 3). In
1875, residents in northern New Hanover County persuaded the state legislature to form a new
county named “Pender.”

It has been said that “Burgaw’s heart beat first at the depot” because it predated the incorporation
of the new county seat by nearly thirty years (Olson). > A civil engineer for the Wilmington &
Weldon Railroad examined the land around the Burgaw Depot and reported that it was well
situated for a town. The railroad decided to lay-out a town out of seventy three acres which
featured broad main streets and a central four acre public square. The railroad offered to give the
county one half of the lots to sell to raise revenue if the county seat would be moved there. The
railroad even offered a twenty percent discount on railroad freight rates for the transport of
building materials the first year (Reaves 2, 30 March 1875).

The names of many of the oldest streets of the town read like a “who’s who” of the early history
of the Wilmington & Weldon Railroad. These included streets named for Col. R.R. Bridgers,
then president of the railroad; William S. Ashe, a resident of Rocky Point and wartime president
of the railroad; Governor Edward B. Dudley, a founder and first president of the railroad as well
as a state governor; Fremont Street for Col. Sewall L. Fremont who had been general
superintendent and chief engineer of the railroad; MacRae Street for one of the railroad’s
directors; P.K. Dickinson a rail company organizer, founder, and company director; William A.
Wright, an attorney and state director for the railroad, and Stephen D. Wallace, who became
railroad president in 1862; R.R Bridgers who also became president (Reaves 5) (Confederate
Railroads, NC: Wilmington & Weldon, officers).

The Burgaw Depot site was ratified as county seat in an election during August 1877. The
matter was then approved by the legislature when convened, and in March 1878 the county
accepted fifty acres of land for the town site. The town was incorporated on February 25, 1879
by the NC General Assembly, and on December 8, 1879 the name of the post office was changed
from “Burgaw Depot” to “Burgaw.” In 1893, the railroad again donated property, this time for a
town cemetery (Reaves 25).

In 1896, Wilmington’s Evening Dispatch reported that a thriving trade center was developing
around Burgaw.

Twenty-two miles from Wilmington, NC, on the Wilmington & Weldon Railroad, is situated the
little town of Burgaw, which is the county seat of Pender...The citizens of the town are largely
farmers and truck growers. This is a very lucrative business in this section of the country, as the
soil is rich and well adapted to the raising of all kinds of grain and vegetable. Strawberries are
also raised in great profusion and made a specialty by many of the farmers (Reaves 28).




This 1907 photograph was taken after the 1850 depot was renovated in 1898, likely to
improve the station master’s work area and waiting room shown in the foreground. No
photos are known of the original 1850 appearance. The windows were removed and the
area converted to warehouse when new waiting rooms and station master’s work areas
were added in 1916/17 (Photo courtesy of Pender County Public Library).

Taken after the 1898 renovation, the 1916/17 expansion removed the windows and doors on the right and
replaced them with board and batten. The third sliding warehouse door was then installed as it appears
today (Photo courtesy of Pender County Public Library - donated by Catherine Haynes Moore)




The depot and railroad became ever important in the shipping of the agricultural products. For
example, an April 1898 article in the Wilmington newspaper reported that fifty crates of
strawberries were shipped via railroad to the north (Reaves, p. 31). Other newspaper articles at
the turn of century reflect the contribution of the depot and railroad in the establishment of

‘locating in the town, such as the Garysburg Manufacturing Company in 1906, followed by the
East River Lumber Company and the Union Brick and Tile Company in 1907. The railroad
attracted industry to the agricultural base further diversifying and expanding the local economy.
The 1916/17 loading dock expansion reflected these developments. In 1920, several tobacco
warehouses were established in town (Reaves 38, 41, 67).

The old W&W Railroad, after many mergers, became Atlantic Coast Line in 1893, the Seaboard
Coast Line in 1967, and the CSX in 1982 (Abandoned Railroads of the United States). However,
the paving of highways and the rise of trucking in the twentieth century precipitated a decline in
the railroad for both passengers and freight. The last regular passenger trains ran through town in
the 1960’s. In the late 1970’s town officials called attention to the fact that the rail line was in an
unsafe condition. Meanwhile, the Seaboard Coastline Railroad, now headquartered in
Jacksonville, FL, was shedding itself of unprofitable routes and avoiding the necessary
investment in infrastructure investment to maintain them. Old wooded depots considered
liabilities were being dismantled for lumber, or moved off site to become barns or storage
buildings.

With the depot no longer in use, the Burgaw Jaycees took interest in the facility as the location
for a possible clubhouse during the early 1980°s. Leaders of the effort included Fred Walker
who wrote the Historic Register nomination under review from State Archives & History, Larry
Bolick, Tom Bradshaw, Andy Carter, Dean Lanning, John Milam, and Millard Murray. Not

the railroad transfer ownership to the Town of Burgaw with an understanding they could use it
for perpetuity (Wilkes).

Their efforts were successful and in February 1982 the Seaboard Coast Line announced
ownership could be conveyed to the town without cost. The railroad superintendent also wrote
Mayor Charles Harrell that the rail line had

...recently received an offer from an interested individual who will remove the open platform,
warehouse and ramp from the property at no cost to SCL or the Town. If the offer is acceptable
to the Town, I will be glad to have this individual contact you (Eaton).

Superintendent Eaton further stated that should the town not accept the terms and offer within
sixty days, “then consideration will be given to having the entire building removed from our
property.” Indeed, the entire original route of the old Wilmington & Weldon Railroad was
corporate property, not a state right-of-way as subsequent routes were established. Fortunately,
by 1993 the State of NC negotiated the donation of the 26.8 mile abandoned rail corridor from
CXS Railroad to preserve it for future transportation uses (Thomas).




Unknown to anyone at this time was the significance of the depot as the oldest in the state. This
surviving relic again narrowly escaped destruction. Had the Jaycees not been proactive in their
attempts to secure it, most likely some or complete demolition of this unique structure would
have occurred like that of many other depots. Fortunately, the Town of Burgaw, under Mayor
Charles Harrell, accepted the terms offered by the railroad, did not accept any demolition offers,
and secured its preservation. After investing thousands of dollars, the Jaycee clubhouse plans
fell through, but they left the depot much better than they found it.

On January 30, 1986, a crowd of two hundred gathered by the depot to witness the last train to
pass through the town (Fennell). For various reasons, the railroad abandoned the line between
Wilmington and Wallace which was taken up. The Town of Burgaw interceded to preserve the
rock bed, ties and rail for the one block of rail line running by the depot. Mayor Charles Harrell
arranged for a caboose to be delivered which was installed onsite in 1988 (Shore).

The Jaycees formed the Burgaw Depot Historic Preservation Foundation in 1987. Between 1984
and 1987, the Jaycees were awarded $24,300 through NC Division of Archives & History for
depot renovations that included modern heat and air conditioning. Jaycee member Fred Walker
worked to nominate the depot to the National Register of Historic Places. In the subsequent
examination of the depot by NC Division of Archives and History, officials discovered the
original 1850 depot was undeniably still there, with several additions being added onto. Most
significantly, Archives and History officials wrote that, indeed, it was the oldest surviving depot
in North Carolina. The building was accepted on the National Register of Historic Places on July
24, 1986.

In 1990, word that the Burgaw town board was going to consider tearing off the platform
prompted public interest in the inactive depot foundation of the Jaycees. On behalf of a group of
concerned citizens, Mike Taylor request the town board of commissioners that such plans be
postponed to allow a closer inspection. Further, he shared that citizens wanted to revive the
foundation to preserve the depot, and asked that they be given time to do so. Rochelle Whiteside
Joyce Harrell, and Taylor met with foundation founders Bradshaw, Walker, and Milam who
were soon to age out of the Jaycee young men’s organization. The Jaycees agreed to allow the
Burgaw Depot Historic Preservation Foundation to be transferred to leadership outside their
organization to broaden participation and support.

bl

For the next five years, a small group sought improved maintenance for the depot and developed
a vision of turning the rail line property into a town commons. The foundation group received
several annual appropriations of $1,000 and oversaw minor repairs themselves. A major concern
at the time was that the land under the depot was still owned by the railroad. This issue was
resolved when the ownership of the entire rail route was transferred to the State of NC by the
railroad. The group also realized progress when the town, under Manager Andy Honeycutt,
finally assumed responsibility for repairs and capital improvements in the mid to late 1990’s.

In 1996, a disaster greater than the attack by the Union army befell the historic depot when
Hurricane Fran roared through the town and peeled back the 1890°s metal roof. By virtue of
being on the National Register of Historic Places, complete federal funding through the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) provided a new roof, a historic replica of the old,
alone costing well over $100,000. With the town taking more responsibility and the exterior
appearance improved, the depot preservation foundation again became inactive.




The depot station master’s quarters and passenger waiting rooms soon became home for the
Pender Arts Council who featured exhibits by local artists. Unfortunately, the town once again
began neglecting maintenance. By 2005, paint peeled and wood had rotted, followed by closing
of the platform to public access. The depot foundation was again reactivated by citizens with
Leanne Cloudman as chairman. Also, Town Manager Martin Beach and Mayor Pete Cowan
lobbied for state funding resulting in a major $100,000 D.O.T. appropriation secured by State
Senator R.C. Soles in 2006.

In June 2007, major stabilization of the building and platform was accomplished just in time
possibly for the largest and most successful public event ever hosted at the depot. The
foundation, then led by Annette Coneglio Anderson, planned and hosted the first antique show
and sale to benefit the depot. The event was the brainchild of local antique entrepreneur Johnny
Westbrook, and it was held in collaboration with the NC Blueberry Festival. In bringing
thousands of visitors to the depot to enjoy its charm, the event was a smashing success and an
ambition was born to repeat it annually.

By mid-2007, one hundred and fifty seven years after the original section was constructed, the
depot once again stands at a crossroads. It has endured military attack and hosted masses of war
prisoners at the close of the Civil War, survived the decay of neglect, avoided ill conceived
demolition plans in the name of progress, and suffered the devastation of a major hurricane.

Today, Mayor Pete Cowan and Town Manager Martin Beach lead the effort to seek additional
grant funding to transform the warehouse into a modern events center. A reactivated foundation
board is raising funds in the community while developing a stronger organization. Burgaw and
Pender County are fortunate to have such a prominent building that is an integral part of its
historical fabric, and which contributes to its character. The continuing challenge for all is to-
work together to preserve the essence and character of the past. At the same time, citizens and
town officials will seek to transform and maintain the depot as a place for public use and
enjoyment well into the future. The history of Burgaw Depot is still being written, and we all
have the opportunity to insure that it continues to be written.
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Mike Taylor is a former president and long term board member of the Burgaw
Depot Historic Preservation Foundation. He has also been director of the Pender
County Public Library since 1985. His great-great-grandfather, Captain John
William Taylor of Sampson County, fought in the Civil War (Co. B, 1*
Battalion, NC Heavy Artillery), and kept a company diary in which he noted his
stay at Burgaw Station after the fall of Ft. Fisher. It was one of the last entries he
wrote before being mortally wounded at the Battle of Bentonville.

Copyright 2007 Mike Taylor
712 Whren St.
Burgaw, NC 28425
Email: taylormyl955@yahoo.com

Notes

1 For the actual text of additional Civil War military messages found on record either sent to or from

Burgaw, or having mention of Burgaw, see The War of the Rebellion: a Compilation of the Official Records of the
Union and Confederate Armies as follows:

Series I, Vol. 47 (Part I), pp. 149, 924, 925.

Series I, Vol. 47 (Part II), pp. 855, 868, 1233, 1249, 1262, 1263, 1264, 1265, 1404.

Series I, Vol. 47 (Part III), pp. 114, 146.

Series II, Vol. 8, pp. 293, 299, 305.

2 The act creating the county stipulated that the county seat be located at South Washington in the present

day Town of Watha, then South Washington. However, there was strong sentiment to relocate to “Cowan,” another
name for the Burgaw area after a residing family. The matter was put to rest by an election on the issue in 1877.
The name “Burgaw” was long associated with the area having appeared in English land grants as early as 1728, and
became the preferred name of the new town. Burgaw is located at the headwaters of Burgaw Creek which empties
into the Northeast Cape Fear River.

Although popular folklore says the area was named for an Indian tribe, no evidence exists of such a named tribe.
The true origin of the word remains unknown. While the word “Burgaw” appears to be unique in the world, two
very old towns exist in Germany and Portugal spelled “Burgau” with the same pronunciation as that in North
Carolina. In German, the origin of the word is associated with a castle or fortress in a meadow as the city coat of
arms depicts.

This is interesting since Burgaw was laid out on the edge of what was known as the B1g Savannah a very large
natural meadow acclaimed by botanists in the first half of the 20% century. The Big Savannah drained into the
headwaters of Burgaw Creek. Unfortunately the savannah was destroyed by development in the 1950’s. A 100 acre
remnant of the Big Savannah, dedicated as the H.B. Wells Savannah and known as the “ghost of the Big Savannah,”
is now preserved and managed by the Coast Land Trust of North Carolina and is located in the region northwest of
town.
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County of Pender

‘County Manager's Office

Board of Commissioners
James David Williams, Jr. Chairman Post Office Box 5
Jimmy T. Tate, Vice-Chairman 805 South Walker Street

Norwood Blanchard
George Brown
F.D. Rivenbark

Burgaw, NC 28425

Telephone: (910) 259-1200
Facsimile: (910) 259-1402
Rick Benton, County Manager

Paul Parker, Assistant County Manager

Agenda ltem Memorandum

To: Board of County Commissioners

From: Rick Benton, County Manager

Date: ~ August 13, 2008

Subject: Ordinance Prohibiting Registered Sex Offenders from Entering Public Parks

Chairman Williams requested this issue be placed on the agenda for discussion. A copy of an
ordinance addressing this issue, and recently adopted by another jurisdiction is attached for
your review. : : '

Thank you.

cc: Glenda Pridgen, Deputy County Clerk
Trey Thurman, County Attorney



* City Council
Ordinance iy of Wimngon
North Carolina

Introduced By: Jason Thompson, Council Member Date: 08/05/2008

Ordinance Prohibiting Registered Sex Offenders from Entering Public Parks
LEGISLATIVE INTENT/PURPOSE:

The General Assembly has recognized "that sex offenders often pose a high risk of engaging in sex
offenses even after being released from incarceration or commitment and that protection of the
public from sex offenders is of paramount governmental interest.”

The General Assembly has established a program requiring the registration of persons who are
convicted of sex offenses or of certain other offenses committed against minors. )

In furtherance of the purposes recognized by the General Assembly, the City Council determines
that the prohibition of registered sex offenders from public parks will further the public safety and
the protection of children in the community. '

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED:

Section 1. Chapter 7 of the Wilmington City Code is hereby amended by adding a new section
7-7 to read:

"Section 7-7 Registered Sex Offenders Prohibited in Public Parks.

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person registered as a sex offender in the State of North
Carolina or any other state or with a federal agency to knowingly enter into or on any public park
owned, operated or maintained by the City.

(b) This ordinance shall apply to all parks as defined in this Chapter located inside and
outside the corporate limits of the City."

Section 2. A violation of this ordinance shall subject the offender to the penalties set forth in
Section 7-1 of the City Code.

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 4. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this
ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction,
such portion shall be deemed severable and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
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remaining portions hereof.

Section 5. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its adoption.
Bill Saffo, Mayor

Adopted ata meeting

on , 2008

ATTEST: W AS TO FORM:

City Clerk City Attorney ~
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County of Pender

Board of Commissioners

James David Williams, Jr. Chairman
Jimmy T. Tate, Vice-Chairman
Norwood Blanchard

George Brown

F.D. Rivenbark

County Manager's Office
Post Office Box 5

805 South Walker Street
Burgaw, NC 28425

Telephone: (910) 259-1200
Facsimile: (910) 259-1402
Rick Benton, County Manager

Paul Parker, Assistant County Manager

Agenda ltem Memorandum

To: Board of County Commissioners
From: Rick Benton, County Manager
Date: August 13, 2008

Subject: School Funds Availability

At its last meeting the Board members discussed possible funding that may be available for
school needs, and Commissioner Tate requested that staff evaluate its availability. Mr. McCole
has indicated $200,000 previously allocated in FY 07-08 for DSS programming was not
expended, and therefore reverted to fund balance on June 30, 2008. In addition, $250,000 is
provided in the FY 08-09 budget in the contingency line item.

Thank you.

cC: Glenda Pridgen, Deputy County Clerk
Trey Thurman, County Attorney



County of Pender

Board of Commissioners County Manager's Office
James David Williams, Jr. Chairman Post Office Box 5
Jimmy T. Tate, Vice-Chairman 805 South Walker Street

Norwood Blanchard
George Brown
F.D. Rivenbark

Burgaw, NC 28425

Telephone: (910) 259-1200

Facsimile: (910) 259-1402
Rick Benton, County Manager

Paul Parker, Assistant County Manager

Agenda Item Memorandum

To: Board of County Commissioners
From: Rick Benton, County Manager

Date: August 13, 2008

Subjéct: Former Topsail High School Property

Chairman Williams requested the issue bf( moving forward with disposing of this property be
placed on the agenda for discussion. If authorized by the Board, staff is prepared to solicit bids
as directed. '

Thank you.

cc: Glenda Pridgen, Deputy County Clerk
Trey Thurman, County Attorney



County of Pender

Board of Commissioners County Manager's Office
James David Williams, Jr. Chairman Post Office Box 5
Jimmy T. Tate, Vice-Chairman 805 South Walker Street

Norwood Blanchard
George Brown
F.D. Rivenbark

Burgaw, NC 28425

Telephone: (910) 259-1200
Facsimile: (910) 259-1402
Rick Benton, County Manager

Paul Parker, Assistant County Manager

Agenda ltem Memorandum

To: Board of County Commissioners
From: Rick Benton, County Manager
Date: August 13, 2008

Subject: Public Utilities Report

1. Attached is the August Utilities Project Update from Mr. Mack. We would like to present
an oral report at the September 2 business meeting.

2. Public Utilities staff is preparing to conduct three public meetings in the near future.

a. The first meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 16 to discuss the Highway
210 waterline project, and answer questions related to the 43 utility easements the
County will require in order to complete that segment of the Phase V project. We will
verify the time and place of the meeting. -

b. The second and third meetings are related to the Columbia-Union Water and Sewer
District Bond Referendum. They are proposing to conduct a public meeting to
discuss the issue and answer questions at the Union Rescue Squad Building (polling
location) on Tuesday, September 30 and at the Shiloh Volunteer Fire Department
(also a polling location) on Thursday, October 2. We will verify the dates and times
upon confirmation of the meeting room reservations. These meetings are being held
just over one month in advance of the November 4 general election so the facts of
the matter remain current for the voters.

Thank you.

cc: Glenda Pridgen, Deputy County Clerk
Trey Thurman, County Attorney
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